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DESCRIBE THE PHESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN} PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Michigan-Wacker Historic District is located at the northern edge of the Chicago
Loop at the intersection of Michigan Avenue and Wacker Drive on the south bank of the
Chic,go River and includes areas on both the south and north banks of the river. The most

obvious physical features, both natural and man-made, are the river, the two aforementioned

streets, and the series of tall buildings that defines the district.

The actual boundary is de termined by the grouping of eleven significant skysrrapers
dating from the 1920's that are concentrated within this relatively small area and are
now almost entirely encircled by newer buildings. On the north, the series now ends with
the Medinah Athletic Club (505 N.Michigan, No.l below) and the Wrigley Building (400 N.
Michigan, No.3 below), since the Michigan Square Building (530-50 N.Michigan), which was
formerly the northernmost and beyond which Michigan Avenuve was of a different character,
was demolished_in 1973. On the east, the district i& limited by lesser commercial/indus-
trial structures north of the river and by the recent and continuing development of
Illinois Center south of the river. Very recent structures also bound the district on
the west and northwest. On the south aleng Wabash, the Michigan-Wacker district borders
upon the Loop -- a very different entity --, while along Michigan it is terminated by
the Carbide and Carbon Building (230 N.Michigan, No.7 below) and the Bell Building
(307 N.Michigan, No.l4 below), the southernmost buildings in the group and beyond which
the character is also decidedly different, )

As might be expected in a district defined by very tall office buildings, land
use is intense and overwhelmingly commercial. Because of the Chicago River and the
width of both Michigan Avenue and Wacker Drive, however, this intensity does not regult
in an urban canyon: with the sole exception of the Chicago Motor Club Building on
E.South Water (No.8 belcw), all of the major structures in the district are provided
with open space sufficient for strong definition.

Though in such a small district one cannot speak ol a street pattern per se,
certain peoouvlinritiss ¢f 44e sircels sust be LeshwioDeds wacher Drive, Michigan Avenue,
and E.South Water Street are bi-level thoroughfares, with most of the considerable
non~commercial motor and virtually all of the pedestrian traffic on the raised, upper
level and the commercial traffic concentrated on the lower, i.e. ground level. Wabash
Avenue exists on 1y on the upper level and Rush, E.North Water, Kinzie, Hubbard, and
Illinois only on the lower. The last five, therefore, play almost no visual role in
the district, since the upper level is the one on which the "streetscape' is produced.

Of 26 structures within the Mjchigan-Wacker Historic District -- a number which
includes two bridges and one monument -- fourteen are tall buildings, i.e. skys~rapers,
and of that fourteen, eleven are of significance. Stylistically, most of those eleven
refer strongly to histcric precedent, mainly the Gothic and Baroque (Nes.2,3,9,11,12,

14 below), while two do so weakly (Nos.1,15 below) and three (Nos.6-8) break almost
completely with traditional detailing in their search for s suitably modern appearance,
The seven smaller old buildings in the district are all situated in a single block -- the
300 block of N.Michigan -- and are theroughly non-descript, except for the Shriner's
Building (No.13 below) which is visually almost a part of its northern neighbor (333 N,
Michigan Building, No.6 below). Three of the four recent buildings in the district

are of considerable architectural interest and two of them (Nos.25,26 below) are
extremely well-integrated with the older fabric. There are no intrus‘ons in the district,
though there are several buildings that add nearly nolhing to its character. But since
these are almost as small in scale as low in quality, they hardly amount to more than

a minor irritation.
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rather adventitious.) S S

The primary and major significance of the Michigan-Wacker Historic District lies i)
the remarkable concentration of 1520's skyscrapvers within this relatively small area =--
a concertration unrivalled. in Chicago or, in all likelihood, any other city. But apart
from the actual fact of this concentration and the individual excellence it contains,
the most important of the group (Nos.l-3,6—9,ll—l2 below) also clearly document the
evolution of style from historical eclecticism at the beginning of the decade -- as in
the Wrigley (1921, 1924), Tribune (1925), London Guarantee (1923), and Pure 0il (1926)
buildings -~ to non-historical moderrity at its ciose -- viz., the 333 N,Michigan (1523)
Carbide and Carbon (1929(. apd Chiceage Motox Club {1523) buiidings.

The location of so pany major structures within so small an area and in so short
a time is a function of neither historical chance nor wholly of the building boom of the
1920's, but of the implementation of two facets of the Burnham-Bennett Plap of Chicago
(1909). Until 1919, Michigan Avenue frem Randolph north to the river was a narrow,
decaying street, described by Walter Moedy as presenting "the appearance of a poor,
tenth-rate city.” Its traffic c¢rossed the river on the congested Rush Street Bridge and
Michigan then co:tinued north of the river as the primarily residential Pine Street, The
Plan of Chicago called for widening, construction of a bridge, and re-design of Michigan
Avenue as a bi-level roadway -~ three elements that Were realized with the opening of
the Michigan Avenue- Bridge on 14 May 1920. And the orening of the bridge signalled the
beginning of the commercial development of North Michigan Avenue, a development whose
first, celebrated symptom was the Wrigley Building., The second facet of the Plan of
of the old South Water Street Market and

redevelopment of the south bank of the Chicago River as a boulevard, the well-known

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE (N.RB, : Exploration/Settlement significance is secondary and

itself, but did nct become really serious until the 1920 proposal of Bennett and Parzons,
By 1925; the Market had been relocated two miles south of the Loop and the following
year the original portion of Wacker Drive .as completed. In a few short years, 1919-26,
vhat had been one of the less desirable parts of Chicago's central business district
became a prized location. The erection of major structures was g foregone conclusion.
Almost incidental to the significance of the Micnigan-Wacker Historic District in
architecture and, to a somewhat lesser degree, city pPlanning, is the fact that two of
the most significant sites in Chicago's earliest history fall within it. First in point
of time, if not hecessarily importance, is the Jean Baptiste Point Du Sable Homesite,
Chicago's first permanent residence, located where the Equitable Building now stands
(401 N.Michigan; declared & National Historic Landmark on 11 May 1976). The other is the
site of the original Fort Dearborn (1803-12), approximately located in the actual
intersection of Michigan Avenue and Wacker Drive. That there are no visible remains of

either goes, certainly, without saying.
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SITES AND STRUCTURES WITHIN THE MICHIGAN-WACKER HISTORIC DISTRICT

Numbers refer to the accompanying map.

A. SITES AND STRUCTURES OF PRIMARY SIGNIFICANCE
1. MEDINAH ATHLETIC CLUBR (NOW: SHERATON-CHICAGO HOTEL)

S

505 North Michigan Avenue
1929; Walter W.Ahlschlager, architect
Height: 45 stories

TRIBUNE BUILDING
435 North Michigan Avenue
1925; Howells and Hood, architects; Holabird and Roche, engineers

Height: 26 stories

The Tribune Building has been one of the best-known buildings in Chicago
since before its erection, the Howells and Hocd design having won the
international Tribune Competition of 1922.

Two other structures are on the property and physically attached {ic the

m, .27 . . T..X2ar. . M e ooy [ 42 - I 4 3
Trivune Duilding. They arc the Tribtuze Plant building (1020; Jorvic Hunt

architect) on the east, and the former WGN Studio building (19%5; Howells,
Hood, and Fouilhoux, architects) on the north.

WRIGLZY BUILDING AND ANNEX

400 Nerth Michigan Avenue

1921, 1924 (Annex); Graham, Anderson, Probst, and White, architects
Height: 17 stories plus tower and 19 stories (Annex)

The Wrigley Building is the firsi. in point of time of the skyscrapers on
North Michigzn Avenue and the initial step in the commercial development
of the avenue north of the Chicago Kiver.

MICHIGAN AVENUE BRIDGE AND BRIDGEHCUSE

Michigan Avenue at the Chicago River (365 North Michigan Avenue)

Cpened 14 May 1920; William A. Mulcahy, chief engineer of construction;
Edward H.Bennett, architect

The Michigan Avenue Bridge is the first double-leaf bascule span ever
erected and became tr» prototype for innumerable others in Chicago and
elsewh 're. The opening of the Michigan Avenue Bridge was also one of the
most significant events in the history of the city's central area, providing
the incentive for the redevelopment of Michigan Avenue north of Ranaolph
Street -- a redevelopment that has not yet ended.

S5I1TZ OF FORT DEARBORN
Intersection of Michigan Avenue and Wacker Drive (approximate)
1803-12 ‘
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A. SITES AND STRUCTURES OF PRIMARY SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

6. 333 NORTH MICEIGAN BUILDING
33% North Michigan Avenue
1928; Holabird and Root, architects
Height: 35 stories

7. CARBIDE AND CARBON BUILDING
230 North Michigan Avenue
1929; Burnham Brothers, architects
Height: 40 stories

8. CHICAGO MOTOR CLUB BUILDING
66 East South wWater
1629; Holabird and Root, architects
Height: 17 stories

g, PURZ OIL BUILDING (NCW#: NORTH AMERICAN LIFE INSURANCE BUILDING)

25 East Wacker Drive
1926; Giaver and Dinkelberg, architects; Thielbar and Fugard, associates

Height: 24 stories

10. GEORGE WASHINGTON, ROBERT MORRIS AND HAYM SALOMON MEZMORIAL

Heald Square
Dedicated 15 Necember 1941; lLorado Taft, sculptor

The terminal date for the actual design of the memorial is 30.0ctober 1936,
the date of lLorado maft's death. The work was completed by Taft's associate,

leonard Crunelle.

11, MATHER TOWER (NOW: LINCOLN TOWER BUILDING)
75 East Wacker Drive
1928; Herbert H.Riddle, architect
Height: 24 stories

12. LONDON GUARANTEE AND ACCIDENT BUILDING (NOW: STONE CONTAINER BUILDING)

360 North Michigan Avenue
1923%; Alfred S, Alschuler, architect
Height: 21 stories

B. STRUCTURES CF SEZCONDARY SIGNIFICANCE

13. (SHRINERS') BUILDING
32% North Hichigan _
Date and architect unknown
Height: 3 stories
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B. STRUCTURES OF SECONDARY SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

14, BELL BUILDING (NOW: OLD REPUBLIC BUILDING)
307 North Michigan Avenue
1925; Vitzthum and Burns, architects
Height: 24 stories

15, MILLINERY MART
_ 65 East South VWater
1928; Rissman and Hirschfield, architects

Height: 25 stories

16. WABASH AVENUE BRIDGE
Wabash Avenue at Chicago River
1930; Donald N. Becker, engineer of bridge design; Clarence S. Rowe, engineeTl

of bridge censtruction.

The bridge received the Annuzl Award of Merit of the American Institute
of Steel Constructionm as the most veautiful steel bridge (Class A) of

1930.

C. OLDER STRUCTURES OF LITTLEZ OR NO SIGNIFICANCE

17. COMMERCIAL BUILDING
336 North Michigan Avenue
Date and architect unknown
Height: 3 stories

18. COMMERCTAL BUILDING
334 North Michigan Avenue
Date and architect unknown
Height: 3 stories

19. COMMERCIAL BUILDING
326 North Michigan Avenue
Date and architect unknown
Height: 3 stories

20, COMMERCIAL BUILDING
316 North Michigan Avenue
Date and architect unknowr
Height: 3 stories
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C. OLDER STRUCTURES OF LITTLE OR NO SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

21. COMMERCIAL BUILDING '
310 North Michigan Avenue
Date and architect unknown
Height: under 5 stories

22, COMMZRCIAL BUILDING
300 North Michigan Avenue
Date and architect unknown
Height: under 5 stories

2%. D.B.FISK AND COMPANY BUILDING (NOW: OXFORD HOUSE HOTEL)

225 North Wabash
1912; George L. Harvey, architect
Beight: 13 stories

The original design was altered beyond recogniticn at some point after 1949,

D. RECENT STRUCTURES CF ARCHITZCTURAL INTEREST

24, EQUITABLE BUILDING
40} North Michigan Avenue
1965; Skidmore, Cwings, and Merrill; and Alfred Shaw and Associates, architects

Height: 40 &tories
The Equitable Building also marks the site of the Jean Baptiste Point
DuSable Home, Chicago's first permanent residence and a National Historic
Landmark (11 May 1976). The site is not cited among those of primary
significance -- which it obviously is -- only to avoid confusion batween
it and the extant structure.

25, EXECUTIVE HOUSE
71 East Wacker Drive
1960; Milton M. Schwartz and Associates, architects

Height: over 32 stories

26. SEVENTEZNTH CHURCH OF CHRIST SCIENTIST
55 East Wacker Drive
1968; Harry M. Weese and Associates, architects

E. RECENT STRUCTURES OF LITTLE OR NO INTEREST

27. PARKING GARAGE
57 East South Water
Date and Architect unknéwn
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ZONE Fasting Northing
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435, and 505 N.Michigan; 57, 65, and 66 E.South Water; 225 N.Wabash; and 35, 55,
71, and 75 East Wacker.

GEOGRAPHICAL DATA ITEM NUMBER 10

505 N.Michigan whichever is farther south, W on this to Michigan, S on Michigan to the
N line of 400 N. Michigan, W on this to Rush, S on Rush to the north bank of the
Chicago River, SW on the north bank of the Chicago River to a point five feet SW of the
Wabash Avenue Bridge and/or Bridgehouse, S from this point parallel to the Bridge to
the south bank of the Chicago River, SW on the south bank of the Chicago River to the
extension of the W line of 35 E.Wacker, S on this extension and the line itself to
Haddock Place, E on Haddock Flace to Garland Court, N on Garland Court to the S line

of 230 N.Michigan, E on this line to Michigan and then N on Michigan to the point of

beginning.

N.B.: Boundary segments on Streets and alleys follow the mid-line of those streets and
allevs unless otherwise indicated.
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